
Page 1 of 5; September 27, 2016 Highland Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Highland City Planning Commission 

September 27, 2016 
 

The regular meeting of the Highland City Planning Commission was called to order by Planning 

Commission Chair, Christopher Kemp at 7:00 PM on September 27, 2016. An invocation was 

offered by Commissioner Ostler and those assembled were led in the Pledge of Allegiance by 

Commissioner Campbell.  

 

PRESENT:    Commissioner: Christopher Kemp   

    Commissioner: Ron Campbell 

    Commissioner: Abe Day  

    Commissioner: Kurt Ostler   

 

EXCUSED:    Commissioner: Brady Brammer 

    Commissioner: Sherry Carruth  

    Commissioner: Steve Rock   

 

STAFF PRESENT:   Community Development Director: Nathan Crane  

    City Planner: Zac Smallwood  

    Planning Coordinator: JoAnn Scott 

    Planning Commission Secretary: Heather White 

 

OTHERS:    See attached Meeting Attendance sheet 

 

 

PUBLIC APPEARANCES  

 

Chair Kemp asked for public comment.  

 

Resident Elizabeth Rice Bryant mentioned that she had been working with Mr. Smallwood. She 

said throughout the summer she had tolerated a helicopter landing on the next street over from 

her house. She said small rocks and dust is kicked up and causes damage to the windows on her 

house. She explained that she spoke with someone at FAA (Federal Aviation Administration) 

who said they governed what goes on in the air. The FAA representative said he would send a 

letter to the owners of the helicopter, but the helicopter was rented. She said landing that close to 

houses was dangerous and a destruction of property. She asked that the city adopt an ordinance 

requiring a helipad and a couple of acres. She explained that the helicopter was landing every 

weekend or every other weekend and if there was damage to her property she would sue. She 

mentioned that the pilot was not a resident but visiting his daughter who lived in Highland.   

 

Mr. Smallwood explained that he was currently doing research on helicopter ordinances.   

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 



Page 2 of 5; September 27, 2016 Highland Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

1.  Z-14-03  

McKay Christensen is requesting to rezone 5.76 acres located at the northwest corner of 

SR74 and Town Center Parkway from Town Center Commercial Retail and Town Center 

Flex Use to Planned Area Development to allow for a vertical mixed residential (220 age 

restricted units) and retail development.  

 

Chairman Kemp opened the public hearing at 7:06 PM and asked staff to review the application.  

 

Mr. Crane reviewed the details of the application and the location of the project. He said it was 

consistent with the General Plan and met the goal of providing a wider range of housing options, 

including senior housing. He said the Planning Commission needed to decide if it was the right 

project for the area. He reviewed the concept plan, parking stall numbers and layout, traffic 

circulation, utility impact, and open space. He showed elevation/site concept, building height, 

retail layout, and amenities layout.   

 

Mr. Christensen mentioned that the additional information regarding traffic and parking were the 

results of a traffic study. He talked more about the underground parking structures and surface 

parking.  

 

Chairman Kemp asked if the project was going to look like the renderings that were presented. 

Mr. Christensen said they intended for the exterior of the buildings to look like the renderings. 

He said the square footages would remain the same, but the floor plans of the apartments needed 

to be changed.   

 

Mr. Christensen explained that the lighting on the front of the building would have sconces with 

under mount can lights. He pointed out that they would not allow sag lighting. He mentioned that 

the property was 100 yards from the nearest home on the east. He said they intended to be fully 

cooperative on lighting. Mr. Christensen reviewed the amenity plan and gave more details. He 

showed pictures of the proposed entry, reading rooms, theater, dining area, full catering kitchen, 

pool, and piano area. He reviewed floor plans for each size of apartment.  

 

Commissioner Ostler voiced concern regarding the proposed number of parking stalls. Mr. 

Christensen said they knew the market and the demographic. He pointed out that if they were 

under parked, they would struggle to lease. He talked about other housing projects in Sandy and 

Draper and explained that the occupancy rates in the other areas were 90-95 % occupied. He 

mentioned that tenets would sign 1-year leases. He did not know the turnover rate, but said it was 

a lot lower for seniors. Mr. Christensen acknowledged that there were concerns regarding traffic. 

He talked about his experience and the retail history in Highland. He thought this project was the 

best use for the area. He said he wanted to talk with UCCU (Utah Community Credit Union) 

about having a reciprocal parking option with them.  

 

Chairman Kemp asked for public comment.   

 

Resident Sarah McGill thought senior housing was better than most options. She had concerns 

about density, lighting, and traffic. She talked about the lighting impact from Ace Hardware. She 

talked about traffic issues on 10700 North and said one of the main problems was the straight 



Page 3 of 5; September 27, 2016 Highland Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

though access to the library. She mentioned bushes needed to be trimmed because they were a 

traffic hazard. Ms. McGill said it was a traffic flow issue in the area and a light or roundabout 

would probably be needed.   

 

Resident Michael Walch asked about the exclusive access for the retail areas from SR 74. He 

wondered if it was a right turn in, right turn out or if there would be a left turn lane on SR 74 and 

how much stacking would be necessary. Mr. Crane explained that it was planned to be a full 

turn.   

 

Commissioner Ostler asked for clarification on the square footage for the retail space and asked 

if fire staff was okay with one access for the retail. Mr. Crane explained that there was an access 

agreement with the property to the north.  

 

Chairman Kemp asked for additional comments. Multiple residents informally said they liked the 

models, but stressed concern regarding traffic safety. They liked the project, but did not want to 

get stuck in their neighborhood because of traffic.   

 

Chairman Kemp said he thought a lot about the development since the last meeting. He said he 

was also concerned with traffic and the neighbors to the east. He was concerned that if this 

project was not approved then something bringing more traffic might be approved in the future. 

He wondered what would happen if the project was approved, but the intersection had terrible 

traffic issues. Mr. Christensen said if the intersection was over burdened, or became over 

burdened over time, they would be happy to cooperate with UDOT (Utah Department of 

Transportation) and Highland in getting UDOT to add an intersection.  

 

Commissioner Day asked about the turnover rate and the possibility for government subsidies. 

Mr. Christensen did not have specific numbers, but said seniors tend to move less. He explained 

that the trips per day were less because they traveled more. He explained that the project was not 

a government subsidized or low income housing development, meaning that there would not be 

income restrictions or requirements for a certain portion of the development.   

 

Commissioner Ostler wondered if any of the apartments would fit into some kind of rent assisted 

housing program. Mr. Christensen explained that the financing program and target market was 

not for low income, but that the development did fit into "affordable housing". He thought rent 

assistance might be able to be obtained through social security or other programs.  

 

Commissioner Day wondered about the impact to surrounding businesses. Everyone agreed that 

businesses would benefit any time additional people were brought into the area.  

 

Chairman Kemp closed the public hearing at 8:00 PM and asked for additional comments or 

concerns from the commissioners.   

 

Commissioner Campbell's biggest concerns were with traffic and said he was very sensitive to 

traffic issues. He felt his questions had been answered fairly well and thought this project was 

the best option for the location. He said lighting was also a concern and thought a one foot-



Page 4 of 5; September 27, 2016 Highland Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

candle was very reasonable and generous to the residents. He talked about the balance between 

the safety of retailers and neighboring residents. He was in favor of the development.  

  

Commissioner Day thought the city was setting a precedent with approving the development, but 

also thought Highland needed senior housing along with additional retail. He was concerned with 

businesses not occupying the retail portion. He said he was generally in favor of the 

development.  

 

Commissioner Ostler was worried about traffic. He talked about driving home from his office in 

the city center area and the traffic and safety issues he encounters. He liked the senior plan, but 

was concerned about parking. He said he was in favor of the development with stipulations.  

 

Chairman Kemp appreciated the additional information and renderings from the developers. The 

Planning Commissioners discussed possible stipulations. They talked about the importance of 

having the actual buildings match the quality of the renderings, the second access by the credit 

union, retail parking requirements based on 15,000 sf (square feet), matching landscape 

renderings, a UCCU parking agreement, trimmed bushes in medians, amenities space, and retail 

space.  

  

Mr. Christensen mentioned that they based the retail parking on three stalls/1,000 sf. He 

explained the limited frontage and other obstacles that restricted parking. He mentioned that he 

would have to reduce the amount of retail if he was required to add more parking. Mr. Crane 

explained that city code required four stalls/1,000 sf for retail, but the developer was proposing 

an alternate parking standard for age restricted attached units. Discussion ensued. It was 

determined that the retail parking needed to be "adequate" and that the specific number of stalls 

needed to be worked out with the Council and city staff.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Ostler moved that the Planning Commission recommend approval of 

the proposed rezoning based on the following stipulations:  

1. the renderings that have been presented are represented in the project  

2. there is a second access for fire on the northern part by the credit union   

3. there is adequate retail parking  

4. the retail component will be greater than 10,000 square feet  

Commissioner Campbell seconded the motion. Commission Chair Kemp and Commissioner 

Campbell, Commissioner Day, and Commissioner Ostler were in favor. None were opposed. The 

motion carried with three absent.   

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS  

None  

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 



Page 5 of 5; September 27, 2016 Highland Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

The Planning Commission reviewed the minutes from the August 23, 2016 meeting.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Day moved to approved the August 23, 2016 minutes. Commissioner 

Campbell seconded the motion. All present were in favor. The motion carried with three absent.  

 

 

PLANNING STAFF REPORT  

 

Mr. Crane mentioned that staff was working on a helipad ordinance, changing accessory 

apartment regulations, a possible subdivision application, and a site plan for a car wash.  

 

Commissioner Ostler asked about affordable housing areas in Highland. Mr. Crane said 

accessory apartments, assisted living, and a couple alternatives were considered affordable 

housing in Highland. He said changes regarding accessory apartments included fixing the 

definition of family, defining what accessory was, off-site parking, and compliance with the 

building code.  

  

 

COMMISSION COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS  

None  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Ostler moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Day seconded 

the motion. All present were in favor. The motion carried.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 PM.   

 

    


